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Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2011. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
(under Continuing operation) of HK$1,036.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 62.7% compared with the previous financial year. The
decrease was mainly due to the reduction in valuation gains on investment
properties from HK$2,725.4 million for the previous financial year to
HK$759.9 million for the year under review. The valuation gains will only
affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flow of the Group.
Excluding the valuation gains on investment properties, the Group achieved
a profit from operations (under Continuing operation) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2011 of approximately HK$276.8 million, representing an
increase of approximately HK$225.2 million compared with the previous
financial year. The increase was almost attributable to a full year rental
income from iISQUARE in the year under review compared to the previous

financial year (rental income from iISQUARE started in September 2009).

With the inclusion of the discontinued operation (see note 5 to the financial
statements), the Group achieved a profit from operations of approximately
HK$1,239.2 million, compared with a profit from operations of approximately

HK$2,782.3 million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on
Financial Results

As announced on 2 March 2011, the disposal of the Group’s properties
located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf resort
which is situated on the golf course land, the condominium land and the
bungalow land was completed on 2 March 2011 and the Group’s golf and

recreational club operation ceased thereafter.

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing a number of retail, entertainment,
food and beverage establishments and had its first full year rental
contribution. Rental income from iISQUARE amounted to approximately
HK$376.1 million for the financial year ended 31 March 2011 and the
occupancy rate at 31 March 2011 was approximately 92%.

With the inclusion of the discontinued operation, interest income for the
financial year ended 31 March 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$3.3 million, representing an increase of approximately HK$1.2 million

compared with the previous financial year.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2011 was HK$9,932.9 million,
compared with HK$8,671.1 million (restated) at 31 March 2010.

As announced on 20 October 2006, the Company has entered into a facility
agreement with a bank comprising of a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HKS$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
The Company has exercised the option as contained in the facility agreement
to request for the extension of the facilities for two additional years. The
lending bank has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to grant such an
extension. At 31 March 2011, the banking facilities totalling HK$1,200 million
were fully utilised and the Group’s gearing ratio was 12.1% (calculated as
total bank loan over total equity). Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
Company early repaid the bank loan totalling HK$900 million in April and
May 2011.

Outlook

The retail property market in Hong Kong is currently strong. The Group
actively monitors the tenant mix of iISQUARE and continues to market the
mall to enhance its leasing performance. Barring unforeseen circumstances,
the Directors believe that iISQUARE will continue to evolve into a leading
consumer destination in the area and expect rental income will continue to

increase.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Tuesday, 6 September 2011. For the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 1 September 2011 to Tuesday, 6 September 2011, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All
transfers must be lodged with the Company’s share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday, 31 August 2011.
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Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.45 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil). With this proposed final
dividend, it will make a total distribution of HK$0.45 per share for the year
(2010: Nil), as no interim dividend was paid during the year. Subject to the
shareholders’ approval on the proposed final dividend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), the register of members of the Company
will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to the said final
dividend from Thursday, 22 September 2011 to Tuesday, 27 September
2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, not later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday,
21 September 2011. The proposed final dividend will be paid on
Wednesday, 12 October 2011 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on Tuesday, 27 September 2011 following approval at
the AGM. A separate announcement pertaining to the closure of register of
members for dividend entitlement will be published subsequent to the AGM.

Staff

At 31 March 2011, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iISQUARE, was
127 (31 March 2010: 126) and the related costs incurred during the year
were approximately HK$28.2 million (31 March 2010: HK$24.7 million).
Subsequent to the cessation of the Group’s golf and recreational club
operation on 2 March 2011, employees engaged in that operation are being
retained by the Group until 30 June 2011 under a transitional arrangement
with the purchaser, with an arrangement for reimbursement by the
purchaser. After 30 June 2011, the number of employees of the Group will
reduce accordingly.

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside
training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This 31-storey
complex provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping

podium, cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
Theatre. iISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) except that
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated and
performed by two individuals, which was inconsistent with code provision

A.2.1 of the CG Code.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
code for dealing in securities in the Company by its directors (“Model Code”).
Specific enquiry has been made with all directors of the Company of any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2011.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2011 comprised the

following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Lee Chung

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group. It
formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans and oversees
the financial and management performance of the Group. For efficient
operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s

business.
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Directors

Board of Directors (continued)

The directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2011 on a going concern basis, the directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting
policies as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them
consistently with those applied to the financial statements of the previous
financial year. The directors have also made judgements and estimates

which are reasonable.

The directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out

in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 34 to 35.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, were held
during the year ended 31 March 2011. Individual attendance of the directors

is set out below:

HESRERE FERLESHERY

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HITEE Executive Directors

BN () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6
EBNEE(FIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6
EmE LA Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/6
oyt Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6
$EIEIS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6

FHPITEE Non-executive Directors

BEAERR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6
BIZERSTE Mr Lau Wah Sum 6/6
B TEE Independent Non-executive Directors

AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6
hESEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6
E2/NS Mr Lee Chung 5/6
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Non-executive Directors and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
independent non-executive directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company'’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
independent non-executive directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration of Directors

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The remuneration committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
Charles, Mr Lee Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management; to
determine the remuneration packages for all executive directors and senior
management; to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors; to
review and approve performance-based remuneration; to review and
approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management in connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the Company’s
website and are also available upon written request to the company

secretary.

Remuneration for executive directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee without
recommendation of or reference to the chief executive officer) on an annual
basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the review of remuneration for non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors annually. For all other staff, it is the
executive directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.
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Remuneration of Directors (continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and executive directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 28 to the financial
statements on page 115, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the remuneration committee held
two meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s remuneration structure; considered and
fixed the remuneration packages for executive directors and senior
management and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for both the non-executive directors and independent non-executive

directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HEEBRE FERLESRRY

Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AEERE(ZESLE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2
BIEEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
VERRRR S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
PhEFBAE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
=N/ Mr Lee Chung 2/2
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Nomination of Directors
The Company does not have a nomination committee as the role and

function of such committee are currently performed by the Board.

As regards nomination of directors, the Board is responsible for the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of directors. For appointment of a
new director, the Board considers not only the skills and experience of the
candidate, but also his/her value to the Company, so as to ensure that there
is a balanced composition of the Board. The process for re-election of a
director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, which requires
that (i) every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election; and
(i) directors who are appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall retire at the next annual general meeting whilst those appointed to fill
casual vacancies shall retire at the next general meeting (instead of the next

annual general meeting) and directors so appointed are eligible for re-election.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Board made
recommendations and provided biographical details to shareholders of the
Company on directors standing for re-election. The Chairman from time to
time reviewed the composition of the Board with particular regard to the
number of independent non-executive directors. The Board also reviewed

and determined the suitability and terms for re-appointment of directors.
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EEIEZ @) Nomination of Directors continued)
EEE-_T——F=A=1t—HIEFERNREH Among the six board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2011,
MANXAEEEEZFT  WASZEETNEZTE two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment of directors.
FHH SEFHRZMAEZTS SR ZREW Individual attendance of the directors at the said two board meetings is set
T & out below:

HESERE FERLESERY

Directors Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HITEE Executive Directors
ERIE Sk (E/E) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
EBWEE(FIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
EmE LA Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
[zpoteapites Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
$EIEIS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FFTEE Non-executive Directors
BEAERR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
BIZER A Mr Lau Wah Sum 2/2
B ITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BEGEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
kB EAE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
TN AE Mr Lee Chung 2/2

ZE RN & Auditors’ Remuneration

RBE_Z——F=ZA=+—BLFE  x2Q During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Auditors of the Company, KPMG,
AIZEM 2S5BS TMEHTmAE = REHE provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$687,000 to the
EEAEH 687,000 TR IZE RIS TE B LB Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
388,0007T 2 FEZE R - IZERBERBES HK$388,000 to the Group, which included HK$199,000 and HK$180,000
7l 4578 5 199,000 7 7% #5 180,000 7T BV A 75 AR 75 being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.

e B B AR TS o
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Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are to
make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of external auditors; to review and monitor external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of their audit process; to
discuss with external auditors the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement policy
on engagement of external auditors to supply non-audit services; to oversee
financial reporting system and internal control procedure and to review
financial information of the Group. Details of the audit committee’s authority
and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference
are published on the Company’s website and are also available upon written

request to the company secretary.

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two non-executive directors. The members are Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
(committee chairman), Mr Lau Wah Sum, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Lee

Chung and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the audit committee met three times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of the external auditors, considered and approved the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors; reviewed
the half-year and annual financial statements of the Group, including integrity
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein, before
submission to the Board for approval; discussed with the external auditors
the nature and scope of the audit before commencement; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and met the external

auditors without the presence of executive board members of the Company.

The audit committee also took initiative in agreeing with the external auditors
on the scope and extent of interim review before commencement and
ensuring the Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of

external auditors to supply non-audit services to the Group.
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Members

Audit Committee (continued)

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HEEBRE FERLESRRY

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

ARgEE(ZEEFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3

BIEREE Mr Lau Wah Sum 3/3

HAER S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3

B Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3

=/ Mr Lee Chung 2/3
A ERESIE Internal Control

EFEGAHARR AN R EPEIEHIE RRET E A
BE - ARFEHERFMES  BEEEER
ERGEFNERATRERALEE + WHERERARQ
AIETCHRBURZERT - MEEERLEST
SEREER - ROIRABR - BRILASN - BTHA
B BEMERECTCERATE - AW - ZF
REFMASE ER D REMEEERR R ERE
AARFEBRAELNEENR  MALESE
o - IEABEITHE05AR - BRALER o

EARBRBZEZBEENMYT  EFGCHE_F
——F=ZA=t—HILFER  BAAEEARIE
EHERBETIRG - RBFREMEERE
TEHIG - BEVBER  BEERRE  AREREMN
RREEINEE - REBHER  EFER/AR
AlESF MY ERBE T ENERTE - A
BTRABRANERMES MARARZESR
TRENBIRENEREETAE - EFER
BERBEMEAERERABRREL RS -

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system and
reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2011. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions. Based on the result of the review, the Board
considers that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget are adequate. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which has to be brought to the attention of the

shareholders.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal Place of Business

Associated International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim

Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.
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Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state of
the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 36 to 118.

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$1,222,443,000
(2010 (restated): HK$2,770,101,000) have been transferred to reserves.
Other movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

The Board now recommends a final dividend of HK$0.45 per share for the
year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil). With this proposed final dividend, it
will make a total distribution of HK$0.45 per share for the year (2010: Nil), as

no interim dividend was paid during the year.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$115,000 (2010: HK$8,000).
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Location

B 25
NBERYIBBRE ST =57
(LEEMHBER 74255%)
iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

HETERE

HTFABR - —BABR KR

LA~ L2 ~ L3RLAZEAL
NEBETDRAT—ATRER
(BB R ER225%)

Good Luck Industrial Building

Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor,
and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,
105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

HEE S0

it

ERETHERT=ETIRE

EEmEh -2 +=5%

(B 1B 3665%)

Euro Trade Centre

5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
(Marine Lot No. 366)

Fixed assets

Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

RERZE HEFH
Existing use Term of lease
[HES A
Commercial Medium

I35 RIFER ]
Workshops and Medium

car parking spaces

[EES R H

Commercial Long
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Lee Chung

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, Mr Yau Allen
Lee-nam and Mr Lee Chung shall retire from the Board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company for an initial period of two
years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the
said period unless and until either party gives to the other three months’

notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2011, the directors and chief executives of the Company
and their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following
interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(“Model Code”):

(@ A7 (@ The Company
BREEERKI T2 EBREAE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HEBT
BRER RAD B
EARER Ep DEER ay HWEDL
Total % of total
Personal =101\ Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
§EEE Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 — — 2,073,992 0.58%
SEIBAK Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 7.11%
SEMIE Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,035,119 3.34%
SEAE Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
SEIRTS Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
AR AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(31)(Note)
i ATEZR TH120,0000 AR EA R A 7 AT Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary

B 120,000 BIBA - ARIFESED] - SEER
FEERAR A I EAR D 1O

shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
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(b) AustinHills Country Resort Bhd.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)
(b) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

(©

22

BREESRAEGTI TZEBREE
Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each
HE#T
EEES RAD 48
B ARz RERER NEER By HWESL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
SEALE Cheong Sim Lam — 3 — 3 0.00003%
REMERRAT (€) TianTeck Land Limited

EIEIE
BB
BRI
HEAE AR

Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam
Cheong Chong Ling
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

SREERY%0.25 T ZRHAHE
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each
1EE BT
BEES RAD 482
fE ARz RERELD NEER A HWESL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
4,625,792 — — 4,625,792 0.97%
46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%
26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%
1,099,504 — — 1,099,504 0.23%
412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%
2,000 — 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(5F)(Note)

i ARER NE115,2000% &R E AR AR ATH
AHI115,2000R A 17 o IBIRFEFH A - EHER
AR AR IL SRR MR o

Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(d KEHRAT

(d) TianTeckInvestment Holding Co., Limited

BREEEBE I TZEBREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HE BT
EREn RAP AR
BARER - f AR my WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
fiip =l Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%
SEIEAK Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
EimeE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%
fakode Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%
(e) HmBEBRAF (e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited
BREEE¥I T2EBREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
ERRIT
BRER R B
B AR REER AR R By WEDL
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued
interests interests interests interests shares
SRR Cheong Hooi Hong 10 — — 10 0.00005%
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 10 - - 10 0.00005%
SE M Cheong Keng Hooi 10 — — 10 0.00005%
fzpodea) Cheong Sim Lam 10 - — 10 0.00005%
Br DT EEEIN - BARTIRBEHED Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors and

i
}

FoS2FRERTFONTLMBTR - HIRRIFES
AIARAR TS AR R B MBI FTEL AR R - 7
“E——F=A=+—B  ARAEFKET
BABMEBEA(RETRAIZER)IDLEHEE
AR B EAEEE AR B IGDIEXVERFT#A
FEFE)ND - AR AR NERIORE

chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2011, other than the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

EREER¥IT HE BITRG
ZEBERHE REHNBEDL
Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares total issued
of HK$1 each shares
REER AR Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(5*1)(Note 1)
RisthEBR AR Tian Teck Land Limited 180,030,681 50.01%
(5E1)(Note 1)
SEEAR Cheong Kheng Lim 25,589,715 711%
(7£2)(Note 2)
WA Lim Yoke Soon 25,589,715 7.11%
(3¥3)(Note 3)
G Notes:
1) JE B3 5 1610 28 336 15 M T M A (D A 2 KA B &5 1) The register of interests and short positions in shares kept under section 336 of

MR RMEARARAEENESBXEESR
A B FE180,030,681 XA HER] ©

@ SEIBM IR 2 25,589,715% A% 0 R #924,555,7150%
BEBMTAEEAREE 1,034,000 /% Bl & E LB
MEBLZLES -

@)  MEBL LS 225589, 71585 EI1,034,000%
BMBBLZTEARZE © 24,555 715 81 A ELEE
WML AT -

BERFIEEEN  RZBE——F=A=1+—
B ARBWEER A B E MR ERES
1P E336 %M A RBFR B M AR R A
R MR AR ©

the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by Tian Teck Investment Holding
Co., Limited is the same as the 180,030,681 shares disclosed by Tian Teck
Land Limited.

(2) Out of the 25,589,715 shares in which Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is interested,
24,555,715 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim himself, and
1,084,000 shares were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

) Out of the 25,589,715 shares in which Ms Lim Yoke Soon is interested,
1,034,000 shares were held by Ms Lim Yoke Soon herself, and
24,555,715 shares were held by her spouse, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no other interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries

or controlling shareholders was a party, or in which a director of the

Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@)

The Company has an administrative services agreement and also a
non-administrative services agreement, each for an indefinite period,
with its immediate holding company, Tian Teck Land Limited, whereby
the Company agrees to provide, respectively, company secretarial
services (under the administrative services agreement) and office
space and various staff (under the non-administrative services
agreement). The aggregate fees received by the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2011 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2010:
HK$1,200,000).

A management agreement exists between the Company and DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby
DTZ is responsible for general building and property management
(except for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE for an initial
period of 2 years after the date of the occupation permit and the
appointment continues after the said period unless and until the
Company gives to the other three months’ notice in writing. Manager’s
remuneration of HK$540,000 (2010: HK$353,000) was paid by the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company, as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with covenants relating to

specific performance of its controlling shareholders.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HKS$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
The Company has exercised the option as contained in the Facility
Agreement to request for the extension of the facilities for two additional
years. The lending bank has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to grant

such an extension.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders of the
Company and its listed parent company, Tian Teck Land Limited, cease to
beneficially own, directly or indirectly, at least 25% of the issued share capital

of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the loans made

to the Company under the Facility Agreement together with accrued interest.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

(@)

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
for the year ended 31 March 2011 has increased by HK$46,000 to
HK$2,325,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2010, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by him. The
policy regarding such expenses has not changed.

Mr Cheong has ceased to be the directors of Austin Hills View Sdn.
Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd. from 2 March 2011.

The dollar amount of director’s emoluments of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim
for the year ended 31 March 2011 has increased by HK$192,000 to
HK$3,889,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2010. The amount of the director’'s emoluments which is covered by
his service contract with the Company as chief operation officer has
increased by HK$146,000 to HK$3,337,000 when compared to that
for the last financial year. The increase is due to allowances for
expenses actually incurred by him. The policy regarding such
expenses has not changed.

The dollar amount of director’'s emoluments of Mr Cheong Keng Hooi
for the year ended 31 March 2011 has decreased by HK$24,000 to
HK$1,978,000 when compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2010. The amount of the director’'s emoluments which is covered by
his service contract with the Company as chief project officer has
increased by HK$22,000 to HK$1,765,000 when compared to that
for the last financial year. The variance is due to allowances for
expenses actually incurred by him. The policy regarding such
expenses has not changed.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam has ceased to be the directors of Austin Hills
View Sdn. Bhd. and Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd. from 2 March 2011.

The dollar amount of director’'s emoluments of Miss Cheong Chong
Ling for the year ended 31 March 2011 has increased by HK$43,000
to HK$1,019,000 when compared to that for the year ended
31 March 2010, due to allowances for expenses actually incurred by
her. The policy regarding such expenses has not changed.
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Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 2011 are set out in notes 23 to 25 to the financial

statements.

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 64, has been the Chairman and a director of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively.
He is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Tian Teck Land
Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited
and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is a member of both the
CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore.
He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology in
Commerce. He has extensive experience in property development and

investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 62, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1984. He has been the Deputy Chairman and
a director of Tian Teck Land Limited since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He is
the Chief Operation Officer of the Company. Mr Cheong is also a director of
Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the

Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 58, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Project Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of

Hawaii.
He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 52, has been a director of the Company and
Tian Teck Land Limited since 1984 and 1983 respectively. He is the Chief
Investment Officer of the Company. He is also a director of Tian Teck
Investment Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. He
obtained a certificate in Accounting and General Business from Kapiolani

Community College, Hawaii and has over 31 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim
and Cheong Keng Hooi and is also the uncle of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 40, joined the Company as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She was appointed as a director of the Company and Tian
Teck Land Limited effective from 1 January 2007. She is the Chief
Administration Officer of the Company. Miss Cheong holds a degree of
Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at Cornell

University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director, and is also the
niece of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi and

Cheong Sim Lam.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 75, has been a director of the
Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1985 and 1984 respectively. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a notary
public and holds a degree of Master of Arts from the University of
Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to
1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988.
He was a former Chairman of the Home Ownership Scheme Committee and
the Management Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority and a
former member of the Urban Council and the Executive Committee of the

Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 83, has been
a director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited since 1988 and 1993
respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited.
Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from 1988 to 1995, Chairman of the
Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University and Chairman of the
Urban Renewal Authority. He is also a member of the Court of the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and an independent non-

executive director of another listed company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Chow has significant
experience in accounting and finance and has been an Associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since 1983 and an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia since 1988
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr Chow is an independent non-executive director of another listed

company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 70, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited in 2004. He
currently also serves on the audit committee and remuneration committee of
the Company and Tian Teck Land Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal
knowledge and experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964
and practised as an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as
an advocate in the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau
was admitted to Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until

2001.

Mr Lee Chung, aged 37, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr Lee holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering from Colorado School of Mines
in the United States and a MBA degree from the University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has extensive experience in venture capital and

property investment in the United States, Israel and PRC.
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Senior Management

Miss Chan Mei Yee, CPA, aged 34, is accounting manager of the Company.
She holds an honours degree of Bachelor of Business Administration and a
degree of Master of Arts from City University of Hong Kong. She has nearly
11 years of experience in accounting and auditing. Prior to joining the

Company in 2004, she worked for one of the big four accounting firms.

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 60, joined the Company in 1987 and has
been financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Company, Miss Chan
was a chief accountant of the Company’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 31 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 54, joined the Group in 1981 and has been the

Company’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 41, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Company in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company
and Tian Teck Land Limited since 2004.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of

Associated International Hotels Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Associated
International Hotels Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 36 to 118,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 March 2011, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
BE-E——F=ZA=1+—HLEFEE(LEBEIR)

For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011 2010
(E#H)
(restated)
T T
$°000 $'000
BEgYE Continuing operation
SE 2] Turnover 3 376,374 119,956
AR R AN Cost of services (79,162) (40,222)
ER Gross profit 297,212 79,734
HUA Other revenue 6 4,442 3,483
Hib Wz 558 Other net income 8,901 773
BEYEGERT Valuation gains on investment properties 14(a) 759,864 2,725,350
1THE A Administrative expenses (33,740) (32,376)
R Profit from operations 1,036,679 2,776,964
RERA Finance costs 7(a) (9,175) (4,325)
BRBL AR Profit before taxation 7 1,027,504 2,772,639
5% Income tax 10(a) (7,555) (7,904)
REFELSEZ Profit for the year from
AEEEF continuing operation 1,019,949 2,764,735
B Discontinued operation
RERIERE 2 Profit for the year from
EE i F discontinued operation 5(a) 202,494 5,366
AERE R R REG Profit for the year attributable to
A EE s F equity shareholders of the Company 11 1,222,443 2,770,101
BREFN — EXREE Earnings per share — basic and diluted 13
B Continuing operation $2.84 $7.67
gl Discontinued operation $0.56 $0.02
$3.40 $7.69

FUMBEFSENNEBAMBHREN 3D -
B A F E % A E A A R E S IR S AR B FE1E T
BRKIEE12

The notes on pages 44 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 12.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-Z——F=A=1+—HBLEE(LBEIR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011 2010
(E#H)
(restated)
T T
$°000 $'000
REERR Profit for the year 1,222,443 2,770,101
AEFHMEEBA Other comprehensive income for the year
(NBRBERLEF?E (after tax and reclassification
AERE) adjustments):
BEFINB A R B SHRK Exchange differences on translation of financial
FIEEMER =5 statements of overseas subsidiaries 22,456 30,243
HtbykEhR% Surplus on revaluation of other properties 14(a) 16,884 —
39,340 30,243
AEEZHBALE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,261,783 2,800,344
FAIBEZF118B M B A EHRETH —2 D The notes on pages 44 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets

REZZB——F=A=+—HB(UB%IIR)

RoOoE
3B31H

At 31 March

2011

r
$000

%8
The Group

s

20105
3H31A
At 31 March
2010
(&%)

(restated)

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12000%
4R1H
At 1 Apri
2009
(&%)
(restated)
T
$000

R0t
3A31H

At 31 March
2011

T
§000

KAF
The Company

#0105 20095
3A31H 4R1H
At 31 March At 1 April
2010 2009
(%) (B%)
(restated) (restated)
T T
$000 $000

FRBEE Non-current assets
BriE Fixed assets 14
—RENE — Investment properties 9,859,010 9,044,420 5,945,610 9,790,510 9,044,420 5,889,970
—HEtnE BERRE — Other properties, plant and equipment 102,006 129,416 236,864 102,006 106,800 11,402
9,961,016 9,173,836 6,182,474 9,892,516 9,151,220 5,901,372
RHEBARAER Interest in subsidiaries 15 - - - 52,688 317,93 281,287
EEREEE Deferred tax assets 100) - 7,284 14,984 - 7213 14,803
9,961,016 9,181,120 6,197,458 9,945,204 9,476,369 6,197,552
HBEE Current assets
& Inventories - - 208 - - -
RS - 518 Accounts recevable, deposts
JREGE and prepayments 17 56,032 52,726 9,580 54,507 52,902 799
TEREMEESR Current tax recoverable 10(0) 209 - - = - -
BERSOER Pledged bank deposits 18 502,768 159,802 2,226 502,768 159,802 2226
BEERELEEN Cash and cash equivalents 19 892,024 402,731 444 886 867,266 395,225 442,29
1,451,033 615,209 456,895 1,424,631 607,929 452,516
NERREREN Assets of a disposal group classiied
REBALE as held for sale 50) - 291,757 - - - -
1,451,033 907,016 456,8% 1,424,631 607,929 452,516
Pk Current liabilities
RTES—BEH Bankloan — secured 28 200,000 - - 200,000 - -
BB RETER Other payables and accruals 20 145,225 203,024 206,018 142,614 196,120 198,168
RlHE Deposits received 21 129,899 99,672 5335 127,027 99,672 2274
RORHER Provision for long service payments 2 1,370 1,399 1774 1,370 1,399 1,774
RN Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 - - - 13,003 22,367 21,290
BARERE Obiigations under finance leases ) 4 3 73 4 31 -
TEERFEH Current tax payable 10(c) - 3 68 - - -
476,535 304,129 213,268 484,055 319,589 223,506
ARRRAREN Liabilties of a disposal group classifed
REHAEE as held for sale 50) - 5,509 - - - -
476,535 309,638 213,268 484,055 319,589 223,506
RBEETE Net current assets 974,498 597,378 243,627 940,576 288,340 229,010
BEAERTDAR Total assets less current liabilities 10,935,514 9,778,498 6,441,085 10,885,780 9,764,709 6,426,562
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F5E AT

The Group The Company
R2011% 120104 20005 H2011% 12010% 20098
3A31H 3A31H 4818 3A31H 3A31A 4R18
At 31 March At 31 March At 1 April At 31 March At31 March At 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(%) (Z%) (E%) (EH)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
T Fr S i T T
$000 I $000 $000 $000 $1000
FrBaR Non-current liabilities

HTEH— AR Bank loan — secured 2 1,000,000 1,105,000 568,000 1,000,000 1,105,000 568,000
ENTBEE Government lease premiums payable 2 2,240 2,284 2,32 2,240 2,284 2,321
HANEAE Obligations under finance leases % 120 114 - 120 114 =
EREHEAR Deferred tax iabilties 10(0) 2 - - 220 - -
EfHBAR Other financil iabilties = - 9 - - _
1,002,631 1,107,398 570,329 1,002,580 1,107,398 570,327
EETE NET ASSETS 9,932,883 8,671,100 5,870,756 9,883,200 8,657,311 5,856,235

EXR&E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
& Share capital 260) 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
B Reserves 9,572,883 8,311,100 5,510,756 9,523,200 8,297,311 5,496,235
BREE TOTAL EQUITY 9,932,883 8,671,100 5,870,756 9,883,200 8,657,311 5,856,235

EFeN T —F AT/ \BRELET AR - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2011.

= - Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE EBEM Director Director
FA4BEE118EMM BRI SRR —FH © The notes on pages 44 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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meEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE-Z-——F=ZA=+t-BLFE(UBEIR)

DEERRREN
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
A  EftfEE MERE BXfEE REEA
Share Revaluation Exchange Capital  Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve  earnings
BiaE Tr T Tr Tr T
Note $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
M2009F4 A1 B & Balance at 1 April 2009 360,000 1,470,658 (6,167) 126,562 3,208,646 5,160,699
SHBREHNTE Impact of change in accounting
policy 2(@) — 290608 - — 419449 710,057
H2009F4H1H Restated balance at
MERLE 1 April 2009 360,000 1,761,266 (5,167) 126,562 3,628,095 5,870,756
rEERREE Changes in equity for the year:
NEEHFI(ER) Profit for the year (restated) - — - — 2,770,101 2,770,101
Hi2EBA Other comprehensive income - - 15,045 15,198 - 30,243
PERAERE(ER) Total comprehensive income
(restated) - - 15,045 15,198 2,770,101 2,800,344
#2010%3H31AR Restated balance at
%201054R1H 31 March 2010
MEREH and 1 April 2010 360,000 1,761,266 9,878 141,760 6,398,196 8,671,100
rEEEREE Changes in equity for the year:
REEHF Profit for the year - - - — 1,222,443 1,222,443
Hi2EBA Other comprehensive income - 16,884 10,645 11,811 = 39,340
FHRBALE Total comprehensive income - 16,884 10,645 11,811 1,222,443 1,261,783
R2011E3H31 M4 Balance at 31 March 2011 360,000 1,778,150 20,523 153,571 7,620,639 9,932,883

40
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mEREMER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-Z——F=A=1+—HBLEE(LBEIR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011
T T T
$000 $000 $°000
RESER Operating activities
BEL AT Profit before taxation
— B — Continuing operation 1,027,504 2,772,639
— AR — Discontinued operation 202,495 5,370
1,229,999 2,778,009
FEIFAR - Adjustments for:
—HFEKA — Interestincome (3,352) (2,142)
—REMR — Finance costs 9,175 4,338
—inE — Depreciation 6,583 8,834
—REMERERT — Valuation gains oninvestment
properties (759,864) (2,725,350)
—H iR EBREER — Reversal ofimpairmentlossin respect
of other properties = (4,145)
—REETEE — Net (gain)/loss on disposal of fixed
&),/ BIRFE assets (203,837) 6
— N H A — Foreign exchange gains (57) (700)
(951,352) (2,719,159)
EEESHBAIKE Operating profit before changes
A inworking capital 278,647 58,850
GFERD Decreaseininventories 244 —
RUERESR « 7] € Increase inaccounts receivable, deposits
RIERT LM and prepayments (527) (45,219)
HibfERNZRESER  Increasein other payables and accruals
=) 23,619 23,412
[BEEIEREl Increase in deposits received 26,820 97,138
REIRG & EER D Decrease in provision for long service
payments (29) (375)
JER B E R Decrease in government lease premiums
payable (44) (43)
50,083 74,913
REEBRFE Cash generated from
WREEE operations carried forward 328,730 133,763
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-Z——F=A=1+—HBLEE(LUBEIR) Forthe Year Ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2011
T T T Fr
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
ERREELKE Cash generated from
WEE operations brought forward 328,730 133,763
[=ANEE] Taxpaid
—BAEBERER — Hong Kong profits tax paid (207) (269)
—BAEINEIE — Overseas tax paid 6) )
(213) (274)
REEBE Net cash generated from
WIREBE operating activities 328,517 133,489
REEH Investing activities
BUFE Interest received 2,891 2,287
BABTEEENR Payment for purchase of fixed assets other
(TBEREME) thaninvestment properties (1,861) (18,081)
REWES BT Payment for expenditure on investment
properties (100,484) (534,436)
REBETEEMSZIE  Proceedsfromdisposal of fixed assets 511,794 27
BRI T RIE N Increase in pledged bank deposits (342,966) (157,576)
REETEHFE,(FTA)  Netcashgeneratedfrom/(usedin)
HWELFE investing activities 69,374 (702,779)
RMEEH Financing activities
ENRERERS Capital element of financelease
MEERISH rentals paid (35) (90)
ENRERERS Interest element offinance lease
RS rentals paid - (13)
BERBHHEFE Interest paid on government lease
premiums payable (115) (117)
RITEFAEHR Proceeds from bank loan 95,000 537,000
BRREITERFIE Interest paid on bank loan (7,600) (7,687)
BEREMEERAE Other borrowing costs paid (160) (499)
METEAE Net cash generated from

HWIREBEE financing activities 87,090 528,594
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2011

T Fr T
$°000 $°000 $°000
HeRBELEEY Netincrease/(decrease)in
#h0,/ GRd ) BEE cashand cash equivalents 484,981 (40,696)
72010,/2009%F4H18 Cashand cashequivalents
NWRERAEEEY at1April2010/2009 405,212 444,886
MBS BT Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes 1,831 1,022
M3ASTEMRSE Cashand cash equivalents
RBEEZEY at31 March 892,024 405,212
Rk Represented by:
BERE Continuing operation 19 892,024 402,731
R Discontinued operation 5(c) - 2 481
892,024 405,212
FL4BEFE1SEHM B AMGHREAN—ID The notes on pages 44 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(AE®ET)

1

44

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Associated International Hotels Limited S5 BB 5% & B R A 5

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

(see note 1(u)).
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(h)(i)), unless
the investment is classified as held for sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.
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FTESFTBER @) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in
fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(d)).
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(9)

Associated International Hotels Limited S5 BB 5% & B R A 5

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other
properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years

after the date of completion

Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years
and equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets

)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
accounts and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries and accounts and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency

in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and
— significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

()

@

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
accounts and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(h)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(h)(ii).

- For accounts and other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment losses of bad and
doubtful debts are measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

@

(il

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
accounts and other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
other properties, plant and equipment may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Associated International Hotels Limited S5 BB 5% & B R A 5

Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

0)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(h)(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the balance sheet date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Annual Report 2010-2011 £ 59



BTSRRI AL

Notes to the Financial
(LLBET|R)

1

60

FESTBER @

(P)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—_

DONT (®)
WAZE MR B A (B

B o BEENETEERAREE

T EL U A A (AREFR ) X B 497 S

SptEE - WA T 51 S A

RRERR -

() ELHEENESWA

K EHE R RN WA
SHIFTRE R g T ERA - A
AEBmPER BNEE
BB E RN REEE
EfEEMREERARI -
S E TS R E R
MBEEEERERREKEE
FARBEMNEANKT D - B
HeftHEAN S EMRE

A
I

i
e

i

= 4
mm}
+i#

iy =ERKELE LB RS
BRRIRELESKEEFTELERN
W ATEFERE RS IR S FERR ©

(iii) A BUA
MEWAZERF EIE R
7,

[

Associated International Hotels Limited &5 Bl B 5% & B R A 5

Statements

Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and

costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation

is recognised when the relevant services are provided.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

(e)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

(s)

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

()

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over

the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operation

(u)

@

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that

will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
above criteria for classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-

controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as
held for sale and until disposal, the non-current assets
(except for certain assets as explained below), or
disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-

current asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(u) Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operation (Continued)

(i)

66  Associated International Hotels Limited $lEEREE B R A A

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see () above), if earlier. It also

occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income
statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

— HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

— HKAS 27 (revised 2008), Consolidated and separate financial
statements

— Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations — plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

— HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to
owners

— HK Interpretation 5, Presentation of financial statements —
classification by the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period, with the exception
of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair
value under HKAS 40, Investment property, and non-depreciable
assets measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted by the

amendments, the Group has decided to adopt the amendments early.
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies continued)

Early adoption of the amendments to

HKAS 12, Income taxes

The change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS 12
is the only change which has had a material impact on the
current and comparative periods. As a result of this change in
policy, the Group now measures any deferred tax liability in
respect of its investment properties with reference to the tax
liability that would arise if the properties were disposed of at
their carrying amounts at the balance sheet date, unless the
property is depreciable and is held within the business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time rather than through
sale. Previously, where these properties were held under
leasehold interests, deferred tax was generally measured using
the tax rate that would apply as a result of recovery of the

asset’s value through use.

The Group’s revaluation reserve includes hotel properties
revaluation surpluses recognised in prior years. The hotel was
previously measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16
and has been redeveloped into ISQUARE. The amendments to
HKAS 12 require that deferred tax arising from a non-
depreciable asset measured using the revaluation model in
HKAS 16 shall reflect the tax consequences of recovering the

carrying amount of the underlying asset through sale.

This change in policy has been applied retrospectively by
restating the opening balances at 1 April 2009 and 2010, with
consequential adjustments to comparatives for the year ended
31 March 2010. This has resulted in a reduction in the amount

of deferred tax provided on valuation gains as follows:



2 EFBENEE @ 2 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)

(a) REHRMKEBSTHEAD (@) Early adoption of the amendments to
F1255 BB IFEET @) HKAS 12, Income taxes (Continued)
AEE The Group

B (BReEs
2A) F125E1

UE2R 1ERTIR
Effect of
adoption of
As previously amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
T T T
$000 $000 $°000
HE-Z-ZF Consolidated income statement
ZA=t+—-HLEE for the year ended 31 March 2010
HREEER
FRER Income tax (457,587) 449,683 (7,904)
NAESIR R R, Profit for the year attributable to
REFHEH equity shareholders of the Company 2,320,418 449,683 2,770,101
BRAERN — EANESE  Eamings per share — basic and diluted $6.45 $1.24 $7.69

R=ZB—FE=H=+—H Consolidated balance sheet

WREEESER at 31 March 2010
EIEFITEE = Deferred tax assets 71 7,213 7,284
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (1,152,527) 1,152,527 —
REHF Retained earmnings 5,529,064 869,132 6,398,196
BhHE Revaluation reserve 1,470,658 290,608 1,761,266

RZZEZAENA—H Consolidated balance sheet

WREEESER at 1 April 2009
EIERIIEE = Deferred tax assets 91 14,893 14,984
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (695,164) 695,164 —
REHF Retained earnings 3,208,646 419,449 3,628,095
BhHE Revaluation reserve 1,470,658 290,608 1,761,266
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2 EFBENEE @ 2 Changes in Accounting Policies (continued)
(a) REHRMKEBSTHERD (@) Early adoption of the amendments to
1235 PS8 IV IEET @) HKAS 12, Income taxes (Continued)
PiN/NE]| The Company

i (BEE
HER) 12558
CHEEZ
Effect of

adoption of

As previously amendments
reported to HKAS 12 As restated
Tr Fr T
$000 $000 $'000

R=-ZB—-FH=F=+—H Balance sheet at 31 March 2010

WEER/EXR
RILFIBEE Deferred tax assets - 7,213 7,213
RIEFHIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (1,152,527) 1,152,527 —
REB & F Retained earnings 5,666,913 869,132 6,536,045
BhEE Revaluation reserve 1,470,658 290,608 1,761,266

R-ZEZBhENA—A Balance sheet at 1 April 2009

WEESER
REFRIBEE Deferred tax assets — 14,893 14,893
BEERERE Deferred tax liabilities (695,164) 695,164 -
REB & F Retained earnings 3,315,520 419,449 3,734,969
BhEE Revaluation reserve 1,470,658 290,608 1,761,266
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies continued)

(b)

Other changes in accounting policies

as a result of developments in HKFRSs

The issuance of HK Interpretation 5 has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as the Interpretation was

consistent with the policy already adopted by the Group.

The rest of the above developments have resulted in changes
in accounting policies but none of these changes in policies
have a material impact on the current or comparative periods

for the following reasons:

— The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 27, HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 17
have not yet had a material effect on the Group’s
financial statements as these changes will first be
effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction (for example, a business combination, a
disposal of a subsidiary or a non-cash distribution) and
there is no requirement to restate the amounts recorded

in respect of previous such transactions.

— The amendment introduced by the Improvements to
HKFRSs (2009) omnibus standard in respect of
HKAS 17, Leases, did not result in a change of classification

of the Group’s leasehold land interests.
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Turnover
The principal activity of the Group is property investment after the
Group’s golf and recreational club operation has been classified as

discontinued operation as set out in note 5.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

2011
Frx
$°000
HERE Continuing operation
FEERNBRASIA Gross rentals from investment properties 376,374 119,956
RIERE Discontinued operation
BRARRREGEE WA Revenue from golf and recreational club operation
(B$7E5(@) (note 5(a)) 17,010 17,246
7 EPER Segment Reporting

REEREBRIEE RIBALE B 5 E0
”ﬁfi cEHEARERTAEERSTHE

ABEHERD B RKRRFEHER A
E@Eﬁ*ﬁlﬁ’ﬂ'\a%?  AREERHEMEZA
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J mﬁ%%}j—><i%ﬁﬁ<ﬂME '\*g
\ HIAREMDIBN KIS
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A BREDWIMERE |WER -

—\\

><§7a< rél:

o

2

ENAREMEHENRANEEDREE
B MARERBRRELSLENBAM
EEHTRREHRAE - SR IEEESE
PREFIEREE - Bt - R ER L E
B2 -

The Group manages its businesses by segments which are organised
by business lines and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified two reportable
segments, namely “Property leasing” and “Golf and recreational club
operation”. The golf and recreational club operation has been
classified as discontinued operation and the related information has
been set out in note 5. The information regarding continuing operation
as presented in the consolidated income statement represents the

information of the other reportable segment, property leasing.

Geographical information presents similar information as the Group’s
revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong,
while the Group’s revenue and results of the golf and recreational club
operation were primarily derived from Malaysia. Therefore, no separate

geographical information is presented.
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Disposal Group and Discontinued
Operation

On 11 December 2009, the Directors made an announcement stating
that certain subsidiaries had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of the Group’s
properties located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land,
the golf resort which is situated on the golf course land, the
condominium land and the bungalow land (together referred to as the
“Properties”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately
MYR204,582,000 (equivalent to HK$508,531,000 at 2 March 2011).

Upon completion of the disposal of the Properties, the Group’s golf
and recreational club operation would cease. Accordingly, all the
assets and liabilities related to the operation including the Properties
were classified as held for sale and the operation was therefore
classified as discontinued operation. No impairment loss was

recognised on reclassification of the assets as held for sale.

The disposal of the Properties was completed on 2 March 2011 and

the Group’s golf and recreational club operation ceased thereafter.
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5 EBREHESRAKALLZE@m 5 Disposal Group and Discontinued
Operation (Continued)
(@ AFERLFERILELEDN (@) The results of the discontinued operation for
EEWNT . the current and prior years are as follows:

BERARRELSRE

Golf and recreational

club operation

2011

Frx

$°000
-0 Turnover 3 17,010 17,246
RTS,SHER A Cost of services/sales (11,554) (15,631)
EF Gross profit 5,456 1,615
HA Other revenue 1,623 6,599
Hi izt (E5#8)F%  Other net income/(loss) 100 39)
BRERBTEEERN Gain on disposal of fixed assets 203,831 6

HAibEEREE1EEE  Reversal of impairment loss

in respect of other properties 14(q) - 4,145
HEEBM Selling expenses (544) (600)
THREA Administrative expenses (7,971) (6,343)
BESER Profit from operations 202,495 5,383
BERA Finance costs - (13)
R ¥ AR F Profit before taxation 202,495 5,370
PRiSH Income tax 1) (4
REERER Profit for the year 202,494 5,366
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5 BEBEHESRAKRIEE @ 5 Disposal Group and Discontinued

Operation (Continued)
b) AFEERLIFELRILEZLEDN (b) The cash flows of the discontinued
HEREWT - operation for the current and prior years are
as follows:

ERARELESLE
Golf and recreational

club operation

2011
Fx
$°000

&SEEN(FTA), TSt Net cash (used in)/generated from

ReFH operating activities (514,467) 75
BRSNS, (FTA)E  Net cash generated from/(used in)

IR & HEE investing activities 511,986 (99)
RPEEENFTAAIREIFEE  Net cash used in financing activities - (99)
REnEFE Net cash flows (2,481) (117)

) EHEARELSILENETE (c) The major classes of assets and liabilities
EEHEESENT : comprising the golf and recreational club

operation are as follows:

2011
Frx
$°000
PEABESEN Assets of a disposal group classified
REAGEE as held for sale
BEEE Fixed assets — 286,900
& Inventories — 208
FEUGBRFN - 514 M FER K Accounts receivable, deposits and prepayments — 2,147
REAFEW PIS TR Current tax recoverable — 1
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents — 2,481
— 291,757
PEBEFEFEN Liabilities of a disposal group classified
EEHAEER as held for sale
FENBERR - HMERZ  Accounts payable, other payables
RETER and accruals - 2,348
BUWET & Deposits received — 3,160
EtEigasE Other financial liabilities = 1
= 5,509
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(A#B%3IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 HMWARKEZFEE 6 Other Revenue and Net Income
2011
Fx
$°000
Hl A Other revenue
FE U A Interest income 3,029 2,038
HERARKERNERER Management fee received from holding company 1,200 1,200
Eith Others 213 245
4,442 3,483
Hinlh 5558 Other net income
BEEETAE N, (EE)E5E Net gain/(oss) on disposal of fixed assets 6 (12)
HNEESTE H 2 R H R Net foreign exchange gains 8,895 785
8,901 773
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BREE AR R 7  Profit Before Taxation

BIEADEN T G A)REEENT - 1t Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
MR B e R (FEA) BRR LK amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this note
EHRIBEE - include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation.

2011
Fr
$°000
(@ BERK (@ Finance costs
JENTBUF BRI B Interest on government lease
premiums payable 115 117
EhvE R EAEN R 5 E A Finance charges on obligations under
finance leases - 13
RITEZFRE Interest on bank loan 8,920 6,536
HMEERA Other borrowing costs 140 379
BEXATEE Total borrowing costs 9,175 7,045
B IIAERFMEN Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
BRI R E Rk A property under redevelopment* - (2,707)
9,175 4,338
RxE : Attributable to:
FEgE Continuing operation 9,175 4,325
Sl A ESIE) Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) - 13
9,175 4,338
* —E-ZFENEBERAEREF02%ER * The borrowing costs were capitalised at a rate of 0.25% per annum
- in 2010.
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(A#B%3IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 BREAER @)

7  Profit Before Taxation (continued)

BREATEFE IR G A)RIEELT - 1t Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
MrERiEE R (FEA) BRI E amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this note
EHERE o (&)

include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation. (Continued)

2011
Frx
$°000
(b) BIKAK (b)  Staff costs
FLE HFGRIRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,468 822
e TEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 42,162 33,991
43,630 34,813
(c) EHAEE (c) Otheritems
REMENHS AL Gross rental income from investment
properties (376,374) (119,956)
o B Less: Direct outgoings 79,162 40,222
(297,212) (79,734)
KEHEER  REHE Operating lease charges: minimum
3REE lease payments
— WEHES — property rentals 361 1,250
R SORE 1B D Reversal of impairment losses on
accounts receivable (683) (296)
FERA(BIEFETH Cost of inventories (including write off of
212,0007C (20104 :4%)) inventories of $212,000 (2010: Nil)) 1,875 1,624
ZE M E Auditor’s remuneration
— ZHRH — audit services 687 587
— ISR — tax services 199 126
— EAb AR — other services 189 154
e Depreciation 6,583 8,834
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8 EEMe 8 Directors’ Remuneration

RIEEBCR BMEDI ) 1611651 3R A = 3 B Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

B N Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

e 2 ER 2011
EE2Hd REYFZ BETEAL sTEIfR ko]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr Tr Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
BITEE Executive Directors
EIEE Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,575 700 - 2,325
SEIEMR Cheong Kheng Lim 50 3,121* 700 18 3,889
EfmE Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,628 300 - 1,978
ol Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,443 300 - 1,793
18 Cheong Chong Ling 50 831 120 18 1,019
FHTES Non-executive Directors
AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - - 430
BEZR Lau Wah Sum 50 380 - - 430
B EHIT Independent Non-executive
BE Directors
AZE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 - - - 170
k=R Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
E3/N Lee Chung 170 - - - 170
860 9,358 2,120 36 12,374
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8 EEMEw 8 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
RIEEBCR BMEDI Y161 16751 A = 35 B Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
S (8) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

RIR
gEH04 BEMFS ; AT IR
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme

fees in kind bonuses contributions

T T T T

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000

HITES Executive Directors

EE)E Cheong Hooi Hong 50 1,529 700 — 2,279
BIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 50 2,929* 700 18 3,697
EmE Cheong Keng Hooi 50 1,652 300 — 2,002
gz ipede] Cheong Sim Lam 50 1,443 300 — 1,793
=g Cheong Chong Ling 50 788 120 18 976

FHTES Non-executive Directors

AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 50 380 - - 430
BEZR Lau Wah Sum 50 380 — — 430
B EHIT Independent Non-executive
= Directors
AE) Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 170 — - — 170
k=R Yau Allen Lee-nam 170 - - - 170
E3/N Lee Chung 170 - — - 170
860 9,101 2,120 36 12,117
* EHBTEEMEBMCERREEDE * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
&R - EETEEA #4945 3,066,000 T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(ZZ—2Z4 : 2,538,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,066,000 (2010: $2,538,000).
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EeEAL 9 Individuals with Highest Emoluments

—E-EELR T ——FFERNERHNE The five highest paid individuals for 2010 and 2011 are all directors of
MATHAERNRGINES @ HEl€E &P the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.
FizEs
FriS%t 10 Income Tax
() #HEBHZEXRFIRIETEHEIE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
R statement represents:

2011 2010
(E#)

(restated)
Fi Fr
$°000 $'000

AHABIE — BBFIBH  Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax

RELEHRIRER Provision for the year - 204
AHEBE — Current tax — Overseas
REEFIBER Provision for the year 1 4
EERIE Deferred tax
B E R EEMEE Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7,555 7,700
7,556 7,908
»E : Attributable to:
SIEISE Continuing operation 7,555 7,904
R EE (FIFE5(@) Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) 1 4
7,556 7,908
BEANEHEETRAFEENMET The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
JEEBEFIA16.5% (ZFE—ZF - (2010: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
16.5% ) LK E o BINHEB R F] Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
BF T8 LAFE R B @ A e IR AT R S 5 current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.
H o
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10 P8 10 Income Tax (continued)
(b) FREH % AIRE AR ES (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EEtHaffE R accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
2011 2010
(ER)
(restated)
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000

B RS A Profit before taxation 1,229,999 2,778,009
RREHBRRES Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated

SR E AR REE at the rates applicable to profits in the

BRI AR A BB &I countries concerned 212,616 458,851
A HEIESE  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 20,154 1,403
BEARBRGEHRIETZ  Tax effect of non-taxable income (201,779) (452,299)
AERERHEZEN Tax effect of temporary differences not

BIARE recognised (1,982) (149)
AT B AR HERE Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

MBI ENRIEYE - 102
REBFEANFFED Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised

MG EENRIAT & this year (21,453) -
FRRHIES Actual tax expense 7,556 7,908

c) BEESBRRNAERE (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
WA represents:

ARE

The Group

KEBEBFEREE Provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year — 204
BN EHAEH Provisional profits tax paid (204) (201)

(204) 3
EHMIA Overseas taxation (5) —
ANHA(REU) /FERTATSRT  Current tax (recoverable)/payable (209) 3
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10 PR 10 Income Tax (continued)

(d) CERELEHREEENES (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
() A&EH ) The Group
BHEGEEEBBERERNIE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
ERTE (EE) AERER recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
DMAFELEMT - movements during the year are as follows:

HBiBAER

RERBEIE HTEN
YIS hERHE
Depreciation

Revaluation allowances
of investment in excess of
and hotel the related

properties  depreciation Tax loss
T T T
$°000 $°000 $°000

RETHFIEM Deferred tax
EERE : arising from:

200944 418 At 1 April 2009

— 2 — as previously
reported 710,057 ©73) (14,711) 695,073
— R EE G — effect of adoption of
AEBINEE125% the amendments to
HIEETRIRE HKAS 12 (710,057) - — (710,057)
— BER — as restated — (273) (14,711) (14,984)
‘Bz~ Charged/(credited) to
(GFA)(E#R) profit or loss (restated) — 8,883 (1,183) 7,700
7201043 A31H At 31 March 2010
(E#) (restated) — 8,610 (15,894) (7,284)
7201054 518 At 1 April 2010
— DAE23R — as previously
reported 1,159,740 8,610 (15,894) 1,152,456
— e EEEEt — effect of adoption of
ZERIYEE1255% the amendments to
MERTE & HKAS 12 (1,159,740) - - (1,159,740)
—BER — as restated - 8,610 (15,894) (7,284)
EB&E (Credited)/charged to
(Bt N),/ 0% profit or loss - (6,092) 13,647 7,555
201143 A31H At 31 March 2011 - 2,518 (2,247) 271
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10 FFEH @ 10 Income Tax (continued)

) ERRELEHEEENEE: (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(#8) (Continued)
iy ARFA (i)  The Company

BEAESERRRHELTH
H(AE) /B EOERHH A
AEFRBIT -

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

RERHEE
YIRS

Revaluation
of investment
and hotel
properties
T

$°000

BB AR
HEN
TERHAE
Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related
depreciation
T

$°000

Tax loss
T
$°000

RKETHEER Deferred tax
EELERIE : arising from:
20094 A1H At 1 April 2009
— 2% — as previously
reported 710,057 (182) (14,711) 695,164
— B E B G — effect of adoption of
AERINEE 1258 the amendments to
SRR & HKAS 12 (710,057) — — (710,057)
— BEH — as restated — (182) (14,711) (14,893)
4825k~ Charged/(credited) to
GTA)(ER) profit or loss (restated) — 8,863 (1,183) 7,680
R2010%3A31H At 31 March 2010
(EH) (restated) — 8,681 (15,894) (7,213)
#2010F4A1H At 1 April 2010
— LAE2®W — as previously
reported 1,159,740 8,681 (15,894) 1,152,527
— 4 EE &L — effect of adoption of
AERI)EE 1258 the amendments to
ol b HKAS 12 (1,159,740) = = (1,159,740)
— B &R — as restated = 8,681 (15,894) (7,213)
fEBmH (Credited)/charged to
GVl profit or loss - (6,405) 13,838 7,433
7201143 H318 At 31 March 2011 - 2,276 (2,056) 220
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10 PR 10 Income Tax (continued)

(d) CERELEHREEENES (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(#&) (Continued)

r5E NG|
The Group The Company
R20115 A2010F 5020095 Pl RE:3 M2010F 20095
3A31H 3A31H 4818 3A31H 3A31H 4818
At At At At At At

31 March 31 March (Aol 31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(E#) (%)) (E#]) (Z#)

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

T T T T

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000

HEBEABEREADN  Net deferred tax assets recognised

EERIEEEFE on the balance sheets - (7,284) (14,984) = (7,213) (14,893)
HEEGBEREASN  Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
EERBEEFE on the balance sheets 271 - — 220 - _
271 (7,284) (14,984) 220 (7,213) (14,893)
(e) RERMELBIEEE ! (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
RIS FTECR - AR In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
REEET B BB F el EEME S the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
EEBARERD R T IAKHEEBE cumulative tax losses of $50,000 (2010: $50,000) for continuing
RAEMERER - AEBEHARK operation and Nil (2010: $28,222,000) for discontinued
BEELE50,000L( —E—F4F operation, and depreciation in excess of the related
50,000 7T ) BRI BHIEKEE T depreciation allowances of Nil (2010: $1,296,000) for
(ZZ—Z4 : 28,222,00070) U &5t discontinued operation as it is not probable that future taxable
HHEE  RREBKLELESTT profits against which the losses and the deductible temporary
(ZZ—Z 4 : 1,296,000 ) KRB differences can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
HEFTEATENITEREREENE jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
ERIBEE © RIBRITBUE @ LR current tax legislation.

BERTRERRE -

11 AEIEZRERESEREER 11 Profit for the Year Attributable to

A Equity Shareholders of the Company

NElEmRRELEERENBE—£C The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the

P AN R ) B 7 ) 35k /9 1,225,889,000 T Company includes a profit of $1,225,889,000 (2010 (restated):

(Z=—ZF(EHR) :2,801,076,0007T) @ Fl $2,801,076,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company.
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12 &2

(@) i—‘ilﬁﬁéﬁﬁ’&ﬁ%%‘ﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁ

N

12 Dividends
(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the year

2011
T
$°000
TERES TS Nointerim dividend declared and paid
(2010%F « £) (2010: Nil) — _
NEEABRAEH%  Final dividend proposed after the
EEIRARHRE balance sheet date of
&H20.457T $0.45 per share (2010: Nil)
(2010%F : #%) 162,000 -
162,000 —

REEABREERREZDIRHR
HERSHAEEEABREEARR
REE-

(o) BRLE—BIRFEREMAH
REBR - WRAFERE
REFHRE

EBN E—HREEN
REANE SR ARF EHEAE
R (20104 : )

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year

2011
T
$000

No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year, approved and paid during
the year (2010: Nil) - —

13 BREN —EXRKEE

86

BREABFNZEBAFENARELS
% B8 B (b 4R A i F1,222,443,000 T ( =&
—ZTHE(FER) : 2,770,101,0007T) » E
KA FELE R A 1,019,949,000 7T
—E—TF(EFR) * 2,764,735,000 7T )
KR B 8% & & A A& 202,494,000 TT
—Z T4 : 5866,0007T) © KB ET
& 38 A% 360,000,000 f% ( — & — T4 -
360,000,000 )t& - —T—ZTFR =T
—— BT LRk -

13 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $1,222,443,000 (2010 (restated): $2,770,101,000) represented by
the profit from continuing operation of $1,019,949,000 (2010
(restated): $2,764,735,000) and the profit from discontinued operation
of $202,494,000 (2010: $5,366,000), and 360,000,000 (2010:
360,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. There were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares in existence in 2010 and 2011.
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14 BEEEE 14 Fixed Assets

@ A%KH (@) The Group
RENE Rt BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERFER
BEWE HipyE Hip&E Pt it
Properties
held for
leasing and
capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
RAZGE Cost or valuation:
W2010F4A1H  At1 April 2010 9,044,420 140,464 20,468 160,932 9,205,352
BHOE Reclassffication 39,500 (56,884) = (56,884) (17,384)
wE Additions 15,226 - 1,789 1,789 17,015
RE Disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
EtBE% Surplus on revaluation - 16,884 = 16,884 16,884
AREERER Fair value adjustments 759,864 = = = 759,864
M20114F3A31H At 31 March 2011 9,859,010 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,981,498
Rk Representing:
R Cost - 100,464 22,024 122,488 122,488
fhfE —2011€  Valuation — 2011 9,859,010 = = = 9,859,010
9,859,010 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,981,498
2EHE Accumulated
depreciation:
W2010F4A1H  At1 April 2010 - 24,248 7,268 31,516 31,516
KEEHE Charge for the year - 3,444 3,139 6,583 6,583
RERER Written back on disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
Eiv] Reclassification - (17,384) - (17,384) (17,384)
MW2011F3A31H At 31 March 2011 - 10,308 10,174 20,482 20,482
BREFE Net book value:
M201143A31H At 31 March 2011 9,859,010 90,156 11,850 102,006 9,961,016
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14 EEEE@m)

14 Fixed Assets (Continued)

(@ T&EE@ (@ The Group (Continued)
REM= Hith%  BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment
RERSER
BEN% S HitEE it
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other Other
redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties assets Sub-total
n n Tr Tr n n
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BAGfEE:  Costor valuation:
1R2000F4A18 At 1 Aprl 2009 5,873,000 72,610 5,945,610 315,298 40,257 355,565 6,301,165
ERLAR Exchange adjustments - 6,682 6,682 30,894 3,447 34,341 41,028
g Additions 513,600 - 513,600 - 13,236 13,236 526,836
EERTME  Transfer out from property
& under redevelopment (8,550,000) 8,465,500 (84,500) 84,500 - 84,500 -
DEARBRHE  Reclassiied as held for sale - (62,322) (62,322) (290,228) (81,316) (321,544) (383,866)
RE Disposals - - - - (5,156) (5,156) (5,156)
AnEEAZ  Fairvalue adjustments 2,163,400 561,950 2,725,350 - - - 2,725,350
1201034318 At 31 March 2010 - 9,044,420 9,044,420 140,464 20,468 160,932 9,205,352
R%&: Representing:
2N Cost - - - 140,464 20,468 160,932 160,932
{4{E —2010%F  Valuation — 2010 - 9,044,420 9,044,420 - - - 9,044,420
- 9,044,420 9,044,420 140,464 20,468 160,932 9,205,352
RatE: Accumulated
depreciation:
1R2009F4A18 At 1 Aprl 2009 - - - 81,160 37,531 118,691 118,691
ERAE Exchange adjustments - - - 6,967 3,257 10,224 10,224
RERIE Charge for the year - - - 7,32 1,509 8,834 8,834
RERED Written back on disposals - - - - (5,122) (5,122) (5,122
NEBBAFE  Reclassiied as held for sale - - - (67,059) (29,907) (96,966) (96,966)
FEBEEE  Reversal of impairment loss - - - (4,145) - (4,145) (4,145)
12010%3A31H At 31 March 2010 - - - 24,248 7,268 31,516 31,516
REFE: Net book value:
120103318 At 31 March 2010 - 9,044,420 9,044,420 116,216 13,200 129,416 9,173,836
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14 BEEEE@m

(b)

14 Fixed Assets (Continued)

NN T (b) The Company
RENE Rt BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERGES
BENE Hitro % HittEE Pt it
Properties
held for
leasing and
capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
RAZGE Cost or valuation:
R2010F4A18  At1 April 2010 9,044,420 100,464 20,468 120,932 9,165,352
-4 Additions 14,517 - 1,789 1,789 16,306
RE Disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
AR EEHE Fair value adjustments 731,573 - = = 731,573
A2011F3A318 At 31 March 2011 9,790,510 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,912,998
R&: Representing:
[p%N Cost - 100,464 22,024 122,488 122,488
& —20114F  Valuation — 2011 9,790,510 - - - 9,790,510
9,790,510 100,464 22,024 122,488 9,912,998
RENE Accumulated
depreciation:
B2010F4A1H  At1 April 2010 - 6,864 7,268 14,132 14,132
KEENE Charge for the year - 3,444 3,139 6,583 6,583
RERED Written back on disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
R2011F3A31H At 31 March 2011 - 10,308 10,174 20,482 20,482
REFE Net book value:
R2011F3A31H At 31 March 2011 9,790,510 90,156 11,850 102,006 9,892,516
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14 BEEEE @) 14 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) DT #) (b) The Company (Continued)

REM= Hith%  BERRE
Investment properties Other properties, plant and equipment

HERGFER
BEN% 7 S HitEE it
Properties held
for leasing
Property under and capital Other Other

redevelopment appreciation Sub-total properties assets Sub-total
o S5 Ser Ser Se S5
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

RASEE Cost or valuation:

R2009F4A1H At Aprl 2009 5,873,000 16,970 5,889,970 15,964 10,996 26,960 5,916,930
e Additions 513,600 - 513,600 - 13,018 13,018 526,618
BEERTIE Transfer out from property
& under redevelopment (8,550,000) 8,465,500 (84,500) 84,500 - 84,500 -
RE Disposals - - - - (3,546) (3,546) (3,546)
RABERR Fair value adjustments 2,163,400 561,950 2,725,350 - - - 2,725,350
1201034318 At 31 March 2010 - 9,044,420 9,044,420 100,464 20,468 120,932 9,165,352
& Representing:
AR Cost - - - 100,464 20,468 120,932 120,932
fh1E — 2010 Valuation — 2010 - 9,044,420 9,044,420 - - - 9,044,420
- 9,044,420 9,044,420 100,464 20,468 120,932 9,165,352
REE: Accumulated
depreciation:
2009F4A1H  At1 Apri 2009 - - - 5,605 9,953 15,668 15,558
AEEHE Charge for the year - - - 1,259 838 2,097 2,097
REBRD Written back on disposals - - - - (8,523) (8,523) (3,523)
12010438318 At 31 March 2010 - - - 6,864 7,268 14,132 14,132
REFE: Net book value:
2010934318 At 31 March 2010 - 9,044,420 9,044,420 93,600 13,200 106,800 9,151,220
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©

VIREREFERNDTOT

14 Fixed Assets (continued)
The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

()

AEH AT
The Group The Company

2011 2011

Frx Frx

$°000 $°000

TEE/E In Hong Kong

— REFEE — Long leases 76,705 31,241 8,205 8,625
— FHEE — Medium-term leases 9,872,461 9,129,395 9,872,461 9,129,395
9,949,166 9,160,636 9,880,666 9,138,020

RAFERN  —HBRAEBRNYWE
BAHERRE - ZBEWEZREAE
39,500,000 7t ( BN %2 B W £ A &
BEsRAZAREE)BEMATE
2 | ATIRE S ] - Bk -
H b ) % = & & £4 16,884,000 T
(ZZ—ZF : ®)BREME2EEA
PRI RETRBAREENR -

RZE——F=R=+—H REY
XERERES  FETIEXEXNEN
ETEMRBREESHON—E - K
MEBRUNE BN BEEREZHN—
B —EITXRENETEML kW
EEEWE -

RZZE——F=ZA=+—H " Un&E
AHRENERRTE —HBELER
HEMEESEEFEERARAR
(EETHABBEERHEMBEGEERS
Bz ER - BHWEMHIMEME
NERMEBERNAIHREZER)
HITEM - BEIAMERIME TE
RER(RWMERR) - 2RISR
RHER  REAEBILT - #FH
T WAB NI ET ABLEmIREL
RS & W AR INEYBTERE S

(d)

During the year, the intended use of a property previously held
for own use has been changed to leasing purpose. This
property with carrying amount of $39,500,000, being the fair
value of the property at the date of change in use, was
transferred from “other properties” to “investment properties”
accordingly. As a result of the transfer, a revaluation surplus of
$16,884,000 (2010: Nil) on other properties has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

the revaluation reserve.

At 31 March 2011, investment properties comprise iSQUARE,
certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building and a floor of
Euro Trade Centre. Other properties comprise a floor of
iISQUARE, certain units of an industrial property, and two

residential properties in Hong Kong.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued at
31 March 2011 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers who have among their
staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of properties
being valued, on a market value basis in their existing states by
reference to comparable market transactions and where
appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net rental

income allowing for reversionary income potential.
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92

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

() EHwEEERM £T - RERA )
B o
(@ WAFEN AREUFHBREES @

#OE M WA E % B 52,000 7T
(ZZ—ZF 1 1550000T) - REESR
EEEER  AEENREHERE
B 2= % A R B /5 158,000 7T
(ZZ—F4 : 145,0007T) °

() AEEESEERLEENE & (h)
LHESYNASMEETF  F A
EEEERHRRERS  ERNAME
BRI EFEE - BE-T——F
—A=t+—HLEFEREBEREP®E
RAWAR A /7,983,000
(ZZ—%4F : 5,609,0007C) °

S EEERERERMTEEHNE
REMEXTEROMENE  BENR
RIREME -

AEBREBETARROEEHERR
RERMSERENFBERZMT

14 Fixed Assets (Continued)

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

During the year, addition to office equipment of the Group
financed by new finance lease was $52,000 (2010: $155,000).
At the balance sheet date, the net book value of office
equipment held under finance leases of the Group was
$158,000 (2010: $145,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
income in the income statement during the year ended

31 March 2011 were $7,983,000 (2010: $5,609,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

AEH AQT
The Group The Company

2011 2011

T T

$°000 $°000
1FR Within 1 year 378,467 284,854 376,005 284,854

1F 18 E5FA After 1 year but within

5 years 452,110 513,036 449,648 513,036
5%1% After 5 years 43,487 55,858 43,487 55,858
874,064 853,748 869,140 853,748
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14 BElEEE®

(i)

ﬂ@&ﬁa?@;@
RAFERN - R EREEHEA
METEBEERER - RER
T-TFE=A=F+—HALFER
R SR S0 ) H th ¥ 2 0m E S 18
#554,145000 L2 ETHE R
EEE*Faﬂ?%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬁﬂiVPCAllianoe
(JB)Sdn.Bhd E=ZE—EF = AREE
E@ﬁ@ae&:.?é%tﬂﬁ% °

BEEEH
REEBBXRAER  BITEREMN
BRI {8 59,845,000 00075(_" =z

£ 1 9,108,000,0007T ) H [E 7E & E1E
AR (2 MRE23) -

15 RHBRQ B ERE

14 Fixed Assets (Continued)
() Reversal of impairment loss
During the year, there was no reversal of impairment loss on
other properties located in Malaysia. The reversal of impairment
loss on other properties located in Malaysia amounting to
$4,145,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2010 by reference to the valuation report prepared by VPC
Alliance (JB) Sdn. Bhd., an independent firm of professional

valuers in Malaysia, in March 2010.

() Pledge of assets
At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of
$9,845,000,000 (2010: $9,108,000,000) were pledged to

secure the bank loan (see note 23).

15 Interest in Subsidiaries

KA F]

The Company

JEETIRR (JRACAN) Unlisted shares, at cost 31,084 31,084
B BB Less: Impairment losses = —
31,084 31,084
FEUHT B A RIRIE Amount due from a subsidiary 67,368 565,727
o REEE Less: Impairment losses (45,764) (278,875)
52,688 317,936

JEN B R RIFIERRAEN - 28 - IE

,4_,
Ela
8] o

B o ZRBEHEFTER—FAK

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed repayment terms. The balance is not expected to be recovered

within one year.
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15 R B QR @)

TRIBAREREHBRARFE - B52E

AEREN - A RS AT B -

Name of company

Associated International
Resorts Limited

HEERAR
Diamond Town Limited

Dalwhinnie Limited

Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd.

Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

Austin Hills Country Resort Pte. Ltd.

Austin Hils View Scn. Bhd.

Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd.

EMAELR
g
Place of
incorporation

and operation
Bk
Hong Kong

2
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

Y

Malaysia

RS

Malaysia

A

Singapore

FRAED
Malaysia

SRAED
Malaysia

15 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

iRl
Proportion of ownership interest

HAAH
BRORMRRARE 52

Particulars of issued held by the
and paid up capital Company

RBEAE10T 2R 100%
2 shares of $10 each

200,000 B REE T2 KA 100%
200,000 shares of $1 each

RBEAE10T 2R 100%
2 shares of $10 each

21,000,002 B HREE -
BRESTITZRG
21,000,002 shares of MYR1 each

10,001,285 R BREESRAZTIT -
ZBHRTsARERREREE
SRAGTITL RN

10,001,285 shares of MYR1 each and
754 preference shares of MYR1 each

MREREETIRTITZRA -

2 shares of SGD1 each

WEREESRES I T RN -
2 shares of MYR1 each

WEREESREDTIT RN -
2 shares of MYR1 each

B
AREE

held by
subsidiary

100%

99.99%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity

Investment holding

HENE
Property holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

BETEERARR
péem ()

Proprietor and operator of
agolf and recreational
club (Note)

ERBET
In the process of
voluntary liquidation

BREAEH
In the process of
voluntary liquidation

BEET
In the process of
voluntary liquidation
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15

16

REE A B ERE

it

AR E + Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
([AHCRB)) Mm M ARRLE N E B HITE
FHAESKATTITTHELR - RRE 8
EANEERS - GERRERE EBRK
REAHERNRER  WHREASB AN
FREEENHRME

EEERAERPARBERA(BARAE=TEFT
F) @M - BLEERNFEATERELN
L im k BRE ST iR 2 R ) 2 (B =k JA R AHCRBE
EERTFEAESAAEBBOKAGENER (L
{E% 3 AHCRBFT45 T8 L IR AR B 2 2 B+
FETEIRE) - B PINROFSRAL B -
BRIEBERRIBBEINAER BT AR - 81
SIREEER

MM EESETE - AYMEHER T —F=A
“HRERE  AEEMSBARRELG LS
BERNARIF o HBMEE HAHCRBME E + £
REETHRENERT  EXRREBIES
AR A 7 75 = 3R B I 8 2 AHCRB A R 17
HEE LB - FERIE—E R R T B RS
BRI th AR eR 2 AT - BASEE -

EEgRALBENRNETHASELE
AHCRBFT Az #EE R 2 TW TE X -

FEAS B8 2 RIFRIR

ZHEBEER RS - WHE BN E

o

= o

15 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)
Note: Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of

preference shares of Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf
and recreational club in exchange for their paid-in membership fees
deposits in prior years. These shareholders have the same voting rights
as the existing ordinary shareholders and are entitled to use the facilities
within the golf and recreational club.

During the terms or at the expiry of the preference shares which ranges
from 5 to 30 years, the holders of these shares have the option to
convert their shares into ordinary shares, by paying the difference
between the consideration of allotment of ordinary and preference
shares or such other price as the Board of Directors of AHCRB may
decide which shall entitle the holders of such conversion golf
membership of the club in perpetuity subject to any adjustments in
relation to the issued price based on the instalment scheme offered by
AHCRB. Should the preference shares not be converted into ordinary
shares at the expiry date, they will be redeemed at par value.

Following the completion of the disposal of the Properties on 2 March
2011 as set out in note 5, the Group’s golf and recreational club
operation ceased thereafter. In the event of winding-up or liquidation of
AHCRB'’s assets, the preference shareholders shall be repaid in
proportion to the amounts subscribed and paid-up to AHCRB by the
respective shareholders by way of capital before any other surplus is
distributed in accordance with certain order or priority and subject to
certain conditions.

The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on the

Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.

16 Amounts Due to Subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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17 BWERR » AT RFAMNK

17 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments

AEH
The Group

PN

The Company

FEUTBRTX Accounts receivable 46,862 42,797 46,862 42,797
B RIBERAEMS Less: Allowance for bad and
(MEE17(0) doubtful debts
(note 17(b)) - — - —
46,862 42,797 46,862 42,797
HEFSSENEN Deposits and prepayments 9,170 9,929 7,735 10,105
56,032 52,726 54,597 52,902
(@) BRERDMT (@) Ageing analysis
RNEEBBRAEER - 8FEEEWER The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance for

o R REARAREEERER (D
HRRIZRER) NIRRT T

bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet
date is as follows:

AEE
The Group

PN
The Company

R ER Current 44,272 39,635 44,272 39,635
BHID M E B Less than 1 month past due 1,366 2,625 1,366 2,625
BHNE3EA 1 to 3 months past due 666 477 666 477
181 B A3 1E A More than 3 months
BAOR12(EA but less than 12 months
past due 557 60 557 60
BB 1218 A More than 12 months
past due 1 — 1 —
[REaEEl] Amounts past due 2,590 3,162 2,590 3,162
46,862 42,797 46,862 42,797

RE—REFAEREE  EFER
H—RRBI0KRE14XR - BHIEEUF
B o ARBEEERREMFBIEN
fat27(a) ©
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Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 27(a).



17 FEWERF ~ AT KA R @) 17 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

(b)

Prepayments (continued)
FEUK BRFRRIE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
RNEEFARBRSEEEZTHUT : The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

The Group

#2010,/20094 4 A1H At 1 April 2010/2009 - 5,146
B ORAERERE Impairment losses reversed — (296)
By RN EE -t Uncollectible amounts written off = 35)
BIERIR LW Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
RIBIREH included in discontinued operation - (5,423)
EHZER Exchange differences = 608
M3HA31H At 31 March — _
R-ZE——F=A=+—HBKR=-Z At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, none of the Group’s
—ZTF=ZA=+—H  AEETES accounts receivable was individually determined to be impaired.

AR B2 B AR (B B UL BR X
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17 FEWERF ~ FT € RFE R @) 17 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

() REBENEWERR (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
LB Bl S BB R B0R BB E R MR The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
REEREDTOT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

EE AT
The Group The Company

REHASS B RME  Neither past due nor

impaired 44,272 39,635 44,272 39,635
wE > E A Less than 1 month past due 1,366 2,625 1,366 2,625
BHNE3EA 1 to 3 months past due 666 477 666 477
16 BAE A 31E A More than 3 months
BLR121E A but less than 12 months
past due 557 60 557 60
wARIR121E A More than 12 months
past due 1 — 1 —
2,590 3,162 2,590 3,162
46,862 42,797 46,862 42,797
KEEAgOR B R ER KRR Ak Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
SRR ERERRS wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
B RS ERENEWRRAER Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
HAREEFRITEKARN—REL number of independent customers that have a good track
BF - BERERS  BIEBENTLS - record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
AR EEEXTESERNE - mMEH believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
HEXRDWR AR 2EUE - PR of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
TULEHR R EZERE o credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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18 SRR ITERK 18 Pledged Bank Deposits

RZE——F=A=+—0  RIIGEHEA At 31 March 2011, bank deposits were pledged to a designated bank
B - DUER—FIETRITHRITER to secure the bank loan (see note 23).

(2BK{5E23) -

19 BERRESEEY 19 Cash and Cash Equivalents
REE AT
The Group The Company
2011 2011
F7 T S
$'000 $°000
RITERIER Deposits with banks 859,694 395,021 839,408 387,700
RITEREES Cash at bank and in hand 32,330 7,710 27,858 7,525
892,024 402,731 867,266 395,225
20 HtENIRKRESER 20 Other Payables and Accruals

AEH ARAT]
The Group The Company

BRIEMESER  Accruals and retention monies

RERMRE R payable for redevelopment
work 87,101 171,059 87,101 171,059
HihEN L ERTE R Other payables and accruals 58,124 31,965 55,513 25,061
145,225 203,024 142,614 196,120
B EMENZ R EABREN ARG All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled
o within one year.
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21

22

2 RET & 21 Deposits Received
CWETEFEAHERS - WA ER Deposits received mainly represent rental deposits which are not
—FARENT ° expected to be settled within one year.
RERBEEEME 22 Provision for Long Service Payments
AEERAAT
The Group and
the Company
Fr
$°000
H2010F4 818 At 1 April 2010 1,399
RFE RIS Provision written back for the year (29)
HR2011F3H31H At 31 March 2011 1,370
RIEBBURBIED) - NEBBEFAR TR Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
RESU FHE TREEERE - fELER to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
TEEH—SME - BNESEEIREGHEET circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
SRS RRGFEE - REIRANEEIRK of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
FERNEAEEEEOERIESEAE - A& employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
B8 BT (& EE AR TS EFH entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
Bk o attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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23

SRITERA — BEF
RZFE——F=A=1—H RITERNE
HET

23 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2011, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

FEBRARDTE
The Group and the Company

2011
T
$°000

1R Within 1 year

1F&B2F R
2FEBB5ER

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

200,000 =

200,000 1,105,000
800,000 —

1,000,000 1,105,000

1,200,000 1,105,000

R_EERNE+AZ+H AR FE—
R 17 5] 32 — 19 & 3£ 1,200,000,000 7T &Y
BMEWHZE c ZWITRERAN—HBRIEN
@R =T ——F=A=+—H
8 {5/ 9,845,000,000 7T ( =& — T 4F ¢
9,108,000,0007T) & TEE EEME—E
EEERG R BRI ERNETA
ENEFBHRTHESERER - RZF
——F®ZB=+—HB C¥HEHREERE
(ZZ—%4F : 1,105,000,0007T) °

ARBEITERE A BRRER - X
EEMAFHERMEREARERSZM
F-R/RITCAE - EFAE TIHRENIER
T ETEREFRMNLTE

AARMRITREBCERTERARRNET
FAEERBRILEXEMMIZEER T ER
R WRKRHEARE —ENBRENRFE - A
NEERZERE  MARBANREER
BRIWEERE - AAREEREERED

HOBERE - NF——ER-F—TF
ZAS+—8  AQFNEEREMRERR
AR -

On 20 October 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement
with a bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The
banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first
fixed legal charge over certain fixed assets referred to in note14(a)
with carrying value of $9,845,000,000 as at 31 March 2011 (2010:
$9,108,000,000) and a first floating charge over certain assets placed
on or used in the redevelopment. The facilities were fully utilised as at
31 March 2011 (2010: $1,105,000,000).

The Company has exercised the option as contained in the facility
agreement to request for the extension of the facilities for two
additional years after the expiry of the initial 5-year term. The bank has

agreed, subject to certain conditions, to grant such an extension.

The Company’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the Company were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Company regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2011 and 2010,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
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24 BEBEEEAE 24 Obligations Under Finance Leases
R-E—F=A=+—H XEEBEKAR At 31 March 2011, the Group and the Company had obligations
AR AR ERAENERINT under finance leases repayable as follows:

FEBRARDT
The Group and the Company

2011
RIEHEE RIEHEE RIEHE
NRERE NREERR R E

Present Present
value of the Total value of the
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fx Fx T Tt
$°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
1R Within 1 year 41 41 31 31
1FBE2FA After 1 year but within
2 years 41 41 31 31
2F 1B E5FA After 2 years but within
5 years 79 79 83 83
120 120 114 114
161 161 145 145

B BRI e Less: Total future interest

B expenses — _
HEAENRE Present value of lease
obligations 161 145
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25 BENBTH(E 25 Government Lease Premiums Payable

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company

2011
T
$000

JERTER AT (B Government lease premiums payable 2,284 2,327
B BRNEMENTKEESER  Less: Amount due within one year included
B F N IR in other payables and accruals (44) (43)

2,240 2,284

i

FERTBUFHER SR R EE ST NETE F Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
F&pE(ZF—FF : 5[F)

113

TH o fixed rate of 5% (2010: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.

bl
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26 EXRNf#E 26 Capital and Reserves
(a) RERAMRIDHEE (@ Movements in components of equity
REE R A = 8 T B EL 5 HYEf The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
MEBRESREER - ZEREGRE each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
HREBER - ARRINEYE TR in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
&R IR A RSB D H B B 1B 5 H a0 the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
T between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
P/ N/NC| The Company

;i€ EfhREE RERF
Share Revaluation Retained

capital reserve earnings

T Fr T
$°000 $°000 $°000

#M2009F481H  Balance at 1 April 2009

E3 360,000 1,470,658 3,315,520 5,146,178
SRR ES) Impact of change in
Eof-4=4 accounting policy 2(a) - 290,608 419,449 710,057

742009481 H Restated balance at

WEHREER 1 April 2009 360,000 1,761,266 3,734,969 5,856,235
REF R R Profit for the year and
2HERALBEE total comprehensive
(ER) income (restated) — — 2,801,076 2,801,076

7A2010%3H31H Restated balance at
%2010%F481H 31 March 2010

MBS and 1 April 2010 360,000 1,761,266 6,536,045 8,657,311
REL RN R Profit for the year and
2HERAEEE total comprehensive
income - — 1,225,889 1,225,889

A201143H831H Balance at 31 March 2011
ioE=Y 360,000 1,761,266 7,761,934 9,883,200
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26 EXRKfFEE@

(b)

[N

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(b)

Share capital

2011
T
$°000
JEIE Authorised:
400,000,000 @ A% GHRE{E17T 400,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each 400,000 400,000
ERTRAR Issued and fully paid:
360,000,000 @R FAXEE 17T 360,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 each 360,000 360,000

BREBRFHAAEEKRERTEE IR
B WAIEARRBIRE LEHE
—RBMN KRR - BRARB ORI
BE MAEBRHOZFARSER -

RENEEN AR
BERERENEFEESERNEE
YEB[BRINAFEAD RN
HitEEHREG - DEECERR
RES - BEIEERBEMER
EARENERRSE R ERFEES
ARBEEF] o BRI DIRA

AEBEERIIIVERE - LKW
A1) P m R BB SMEE I 5
REEMELZRSITBREMNE
8 o

EARRREE-RANBARETET
BERIEER T EERBIRMEAEE
1 5 BT B8 /2 BN AT 20 I B e 03¢ 355 0
HOBIEE o

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses recognised in prior years and other properties
revaluation surplus recognised during the year. The hotel has
been redeveloped into iISQUARE. Upon the retirement or
disposal of the properties, any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained eamings.

The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(q).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant to
the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a

subsidiary to preference shareholders.
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26 BEARKf#E @

(d)

IR /erfuﬂ%
R=ZF——F=A=+—8 " RE
EBCABMER B TOBIER ERTE R
A5 R TR B R R AR R 60 7 1 48
¥8/51,762,895,000 0 ( = F—FF
1,268,579,0007T) - EEENEE
E%%#”E&%%%&X%WE

BRO4AST(ZE—ZTF  |&) &4
162,000,0007c(:%—=§¢ )
(FIsE12) - ELRBREEBBREH
B RERBEE -

BEREE
$El%ﬁ§$migam%ﬁﬁ$
SERECER wemEESE LA

%%ﬂﬁm@ﬂﬁ$$ﬁh%%ﬁﬁ
BARAGERARGREN TR

HELERRRERER W AEM
FERIA LR

REBTHRTMERELEARLER -
BEREA B R EBKFEFR
Ba MR LR - BEREARR
TEREE A MRE G T - W EE
EEENEEMALEERNEE - HE
R —FRIET-TF=A=+—
BIEFE @ AEERNZEEREEST

#eh
2z

o
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26 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d)
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Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,762,895,000 (2010:
$1,268,579,000). After the balance sheet date the Directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.45 per share (2010: Nil),
amounting to $162,000,000 (2010: Nil) (note 12). This dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefit for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2011
and 2010.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
2011, the Group’s gearing ratio was 12.1% (2010 (restated):
12.7%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
from both continuing and discontinued operations of
$194,792,000 (2010: total bank loan exceeding bank deposits
and cash from both continuing and discontinued operations of
$539,986,000).
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 21) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s

exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

outinnote 17.
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
REE The Group
2011
BEAfR  AARHNE 1FRE BB1E BiB2F
REE ReREBAE BEBAR  BOHF BAHR5E BB5F
Balance Total More than More than
sheet  contractual Within 1yearbut 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T i T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HiERFK Other payables and
JESHER acoruals 145,225 145,225 145,225 - - =
BlETE Deposits received 129,899 129,899 5,502 92,556 29,922 1,919
MERERE Obligations under finance
leases 161 161 4 4 79 -
RITEH—HER Bank loan - secured 1,200,000 1,216,273 207,470 206,045 802,758 -
FERTRATHE Government lease
premiums payable 2,240 4,131 159 159 477 3,336
1,477,525 1,495,689 358,397 298,801 833,236 5,255
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27 BKRAREERAAEER 27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(#&) (Continued)
(b) REEERER @) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AEE(E) The Group (Continued)

1FA BB1E
FREENE  BOR2F

Balance Total More than More than
shest contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T i i i i i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HitER K Other payables and
fEStER acoruals 208,024 208,024 203,024 - - -
BEKETE Deposits received 99,672 99,672 3,237 2,402 92,128 1,905
MEATERE Obligations under finance
leases 145 145 31 31 83 -
ROEF—HER Bank loan - secured 1,105,000 1,114,641 6,393 1,108,248 - -
ERBATHE Government lease
premiums payable 2,284 4,290 159 159 477 3,495

1,410,125 1,421,772 212,844 1,110,840 92,688 5,400
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27 BKRREERAAEER 27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(#8) (Continued)
(b) REVELERE &) (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
PiN/NC| The Company

2011

EEBfRR  ANANR 1R HBE fickiobid
REE REREAE - BHEENN  BORE  BORSE BiB5E

Balance Total More than More than
sheet  contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Ef TR Other payables and
fEit B accruals 142,614 142,614 142,614 - - -
BlETE Deposits received 127,027 127,027 3,794 91,392 29,922 1,919
JERIBARE Amounts due to subsidiaries 13,003 13,003 13,008 - - -
BEMERE Obligations under finance
leases 161 161 4 4 79 -
ROET—EER Bank loan - secured 1,200,000 1,216,273 207,470 206,045 802,758 -
ERBHE Government lease
premiums payable 2,240 4,131 159 159 477 3,336
1,485,045 1,503,209 367,081 297,637 833,236 5,255
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27 BKRAREERAAEER 27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(#&) (Continued)
(b) RBEEREE @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AKRENE) The Company (Continued)

BEBER g 1R BR1E
RRE RenSes BERNE BN
Balance Total More than
shest contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand AGES 5 years 5 years
T T T i i i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HitERFK Other payables and
fEStER acoruals 196,120 196,120 196,120 - - -
BEKETE Deposits received 99,672 99,672 3,237 2,402 92,128 1,905
JERMBARGE  Amounts due to subsidiaries 22,367 22,367 22,367 - - -
BERERE Obligations under finance
leases 145 145 31 31 83 -
BIER—BER Bank loan - secured 1,105,000 1,114,641 6,393 1,108,248 - -
JER BT H(E Govenment lease
premiums payable 2,284 4,290 159 159 477 3,49

1,425,588 1,437,235 228,307 1,110,840 92,688 5,400
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27 RAREERAAEER 27
(#8)
() F=mEpx
AEENFERRAKREZRERITE
o FEMRITERFEAREEEAZ
BemEMERR  AEEEREE
TR a0 )Pl o

0 =R
TRHAIREEBEREEH
REERARRRIEEF L
I

EEEE: Fixed rate borrowings:

MEHERE Obligations under
finance leases

e BT (E Government lease

premiums payable

Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loan.

The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s and the Company’s borrowings at the balance

sheet date:

BERA=

Effective

interest rate

%

5.00

BEEE: Variable rate borrowings:

RITER — A Bank loan — secured

-t Total borrowings

A

0.70

EEERAAR
The Group and the Company

1,202,401

B
Effective
interest rate

%

5.00

0.58

1,107,429
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(©

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2010: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $2,505,000

(2010: $2,763,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2010.
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27 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(d) Currencyrisk
Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s
functional currency. The Group does not hedge its financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in the
view that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure primarily
refers to the fixed deposits denominated in United States
Dollars (“USD”).

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets
denominated in USD:

AEERAEAF
The Group and the Company

2011 2010
E Sk XTI
USD’000 USD’000

Accounts receivable, deposits

and prepayments - 5
RERBLEED Cash and cash equivalents = 49,521
R AE R Overall net exposure — 49,526

(i) BUREDM
MR B EETTHE - AKE
KA QB &S EETHEB
HSNE R R TR N EEK o
 RZF——FM_T—F
FUBMETHREDHN ©

AEENMAEZRITAHARAR
BN E-TF=H=1—H
AABEITSAEEAZENHET

=
S

(i) Sensitivity analysis
In the light of the Hong Kong dollar peg, the foreign
currency risk associated with the USD exposure is not
expected to be material to the Group and the Company.
Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is performed in 2011
and 2010.

(e) Fairvalues
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.
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28 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s

income statement.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia and Singapore
are members of the Employee Provident Fund and the Central
Provident Fund (the “funds”) operated by the respective local
government. The relevant subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on the salaries of
the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the above funds is

the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2010: Nil) was utilised to
reduce the contributions payable for the year. Unutilised forfeited
contributions of $9,000 (2010: Nil) had yet to be applied by the Group
at 31 March 2011.
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29 FHIE 29 Commitments
@ HN-ZE——F=A=+—H (@ Capital commitments outstanding at
REMmNARETEREKA 31 March 2011 not provided for in the
BENEARFIENT - financial statements were as follows:

AEERAAT
The Group and the Company
2011
Fr
$000
EaT4) Contracted for 6,398 6,339
b) RZEFE——F=ZA=+-— (b) At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum
B RETAHRBRNER lease payments under non-cancellable
EHETHERANRER operating leases of properties are payable
ENRBELAEWT ¢ as follows:

AEBRARDT
The Group and the Company

—FR Within 1 year — 361
ARARZNEEHERRAN—BME The Company was the lessee in respect of a property held
FEBA - EHERBWRE - WER under an operating lease. The lease ran for a period of two
KEERNLR - ZHETBEHEM years and expired during the year. The lease did not include
& o contingent rentals.
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Comparative Figures
As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income
taxes, certain comparative figures have been adjusted. Further details

of this change in accounting policy are disclosed in note 2.

In addition, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling

Party

At 31 March 2011, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Land Limited
and Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited respectively, both of
which are incorporated in Hong Kong. The immediate parent
produces financial statements available for public use and the ultimate
controlling party does not produce financial statements available for

public use.

Possible Impact of Amendments,

New Standards and Interpretations Issued
But Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2011 and

which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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33 EEEBEREEH%E2TA 33 Non-adjusting Post Balance Sheet Events

FIEIEH

() HEEBEBEEFEEAEL  ADAE (a)
T ENARAARERHEEAL
900,000,000 CHIIRITE X ©

(b) REEEEEFEREL BEeRS (b)
ERREBARES o SEBAMIE12 o

118  Associated International Hotels Limited $lE#EIBEEG R A 7

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company early
repaid the bank loan totalling $900,000,000 in April and May
2011.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed

a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 12.
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Five Year Financial Summary
(LL#B®5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 5 Results
2009 2010 2011
(ER) (B#H)
(restated) (restated)
T T Fr
$°000 $'000 $°000
R Turnover
— BELE — Continuing operation 259 295 311 119,956 376,374
— AR — Discontinued operation 18,326 17,497 16,525 17,246 17,010
18,585 17,792 16,836 137,202 393,384
LR (EE) Profit/(loss) from operations 644,677 449,999 (208,259) 2,776,964 1,036,679
A& R AR Finance costs (122) (121) (119) (4,325) (9,175)
BRBLATEF, (E5iE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 644,555 449,878 (208,378) 2,772,639 1,027,504
FTi5%:(5%) Income tax (Note) (109,480) (48,712) 5,431 (7,904) (7,555)
REFELEZRFE Profit/(loss) for the year from
R (E5E) continuing operation 535,075 401,166 (202,947) 2,764,735 1,019,949
REBIEBEZRFE Profit/(loss) for the year from
=L (E5R) discontinued operation (4,626) (1,730) (1,788) 5,366 202,494
NEEERREGEEREE  Profit/(loss) for the year
w=AL(EE) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 530,449 399,436 (204,735) 2,770,101 1,222,443
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Five Year Financial Summary
(A% %3IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Assets and Liabilities

EEREE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
(=) (ER)
(restated) (restated)
T T Frx
$°000 $°000 $°000
BEEEE Fixed assets 5,219,906 5,831,769 6,182,474 9,173,836 9,961,016
EEFRIBEE (5T) Deferred tax assets (Note) 109 97 14,984 7,284 -
mBEEFE Net current assets 418,338 404,713 243,627 597,378 974,498
5,638,353 6,236,579 6,441,085 9,778,498 10,935,514
RITER — BiKH Bank loan — secured — (130,000)  (568,000) (1,105,000)  (1,000,000)
JERTBT Government lease premiums
payable (2,406) (2,367) (2,327) (2,284) (2,240)
RETHE AR Obligations under finance leases (188) (70) — (114) (120)
EERMIBEAEGE Deferred tax liabilities (Note) (699,732) (730,655) — — (271)
Huptkam Other financial liabilities @) @ @ - -
BEERE NET ASSETS 4,936,025 5,373,485 5,870,756 8,671,100 9,932,883
&N Share capital 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000 360,000
E Reserves 4,576,025 5,013,485 5,510,756 8,311,100 9,572,883
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 4,936,025 5,373,485 5,870,756 8,671,100 9,932,883

i ARERFRAT(EBEERDE125 S
BIERT - MRABRAABEARNRENELIZRE
A BRI E M EENRIETIR - AEEEEY
RARCEEGRMER)E 125 ERT T EERBR
HE ERN-_ZFENFR-_Z-TFHA—HEH
g EmEEE—T-EF=-A=1t—HILFE
MEFEHRAE - IR ER—TTN\FOHA—HZH
BRFEENEFIL AT - RARETFILARER

Note: The Group has early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in
respect of the recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair
value and non-depreciable assets measured using the revaluation model. The
change in policy arising from the amendments to HKAS 12 has been applied
retrospectively by restating the opening balances at 1 April 2009 and 2010, with
consequential adjustments to the figures for the year ended 31 March 2010.
Figures in financial years before 1 April 2008 have not been restated as it is not
practicable to do so.
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